
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Michael Cunliffe- Policy and Overview & Scrutiny Officer,  
Email:  michael.cunliffe@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 18 November 2020 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Thursday, 26 November 2020 at 3.00 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fkE1GQCk6aI 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Paddy Short (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Terry Hurn, Patrick McGinley, Tim O'Kane, 
Noordad Aziz and Jean Battle MBE 
 
Cooptees: Paul Barton, Bernard Dawson, Ian Ormerod and Gareth Molineux 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

2.   Minutes of Last Meeting held on 18th February 2020  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee held on 18th 
February 2020 for approval as a correct record.   
 
Recommended             - That the Minutes of the meeting held on 18th February 2020 

be approved as correct records. 
 
 
 

3.   Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020 - 2021  (Pages 9 - 16) 
 

 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fkE1GQCk6aI


 

Page 2 of 2 

 

To give consideration to and comment on the draft work programme for Overview and 
Scrutiny for 2020/21. 
 

4.   Covid-19 Related Business Grants   
 
 

5.   Impact of Covid-19 on Council Finances   
 
 

 
 



 
1 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Tuesday, 18th February, 2020 

 
Present:  Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair),  

Councillors Jean Battle MBE (Vice Chair), Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, 
Terry Hurn, Patrick McGinley, Tim O'Kane and Paddy Short 
Co-optee: Bernard Dawson 
 

In Attendance: Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder for Resources 
Joe McIntyre, Deputy Chief Executive 
Councillor Miles Parkinson, Leader of the Council 

  

Apologies: Councillors Paul Barton and Ian Ormerod 
 

 
259 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Ian Ormerod (Co-optee). 
 
There were no substitutions. 
 
Councillor O’Kane declared a personal interest in item 8 – The Leader of the Council to 
receive Representations and Questions from Members of the Public and Individual 
Members of the Council on the Budget.  He explained that he was declaring an interest in 
Clayton Boxing Club because he was the Treasurer of the Club and Members were in 
attendance at the meeting to ask questions in relation to the Club’s relocation.  He pointed 
out that he would not take part in the debate. 
 
There were no dispensations. 
 

260 Minutes of Last Meeting held on 18th December 2019 
 
The Minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 18th December 
2019 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

261 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 to 2022/23 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Plummer) submitted a report giving the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Position for 2020/21 to 2022/23.  The Strategy was 
attached to the report and sets out the three year projections of income and spending for 
the Council ahead of formulating its savings plans so it could set an Annual Budget for 
2020/21.   
 
Appendix 1 of the Strategy set out a standard mode. Further scenarios were provided in 
Appendix 2 with a pessimistic model and Appendix 3 detailing an optimistic model. 
The figures in Appendix 1 however remained the current best estimate of the likely financial 
position over the next three years.  The report addressed the following aspects and had 
been submitted to Cabinet on 12th February 2020:- 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 

 Introduction 

 Objectives 

 Elements of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Service Planning to Support Overall Strategy 

 Integrated Resource Planning with Service Plans 

 Background Information 

 Financial Analysis 2020/21 to 2022/23 

 Resources 

 Government Grant 

 Council Tax 

 Expected loss of income 

 Changes in Costs 

 Growth 

 Reserves 

 Other Assumptions 

 Equality Impact Assessment 

 Scenarios 

 Robustness of Forecast 

 Overall Net Position 
 
No advanced questions had been submitted for this agenda item.  
 
A Member referred to the possibility of a delayed budget and asked if could have an effect 
on the Fair Funding Review.  The Committee was informed that it was unlikely the Budget 
would be delayed and therefore there would be no impact on the Review. 
 
A Member asked what the Council’s rationale was for using the 3 year projection as some 
Councils extrapolated five years.  The Deputy Chief Executive reported that they used the 
original guidance supplied by Government but would consider providing a longer forecast 
once funding was known.      
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

262 Prudential Indicators Monitoring & Treasury Management 2020/21 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report setting out the Council’s policy and 
objectives with respect to treasury management, to explain how it would achieve its 
objectives and manage its activities and to agree an investment strategy for 2020/21.   
 
Appendix 1 detailed the minimum revenue provision policy statement 2020/21. Appendix 2 
provided information of the treasury management policy statement 2020/21 and appendix 3 
was the HBC Treasury Management Practices 2020/21. 
 
No advanced questions had been submitted for this agenda item.  
 
The report addressed the following aspects and had been submitted to Cabinet on 12th 
February 2020:- 
 

 Prudential Code and Prudential Indicators 

 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing Requirement 

 Estimated Capital Expenditure 

 Minimum Revenue Provision 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

 Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 – 2022/23 

 External Debt Overall Limits 

 External v Internal Borrowing 

 Limits on Activity 

 Debt Rescheduling 

 Investment Strategy 

 Treasury Management Practices (TMP) 

 Policy on the Use of External Service Providers 

 Treasury Management Strategy In-Year and Year End Reporting 
 
A Member asked why the money made from an increase in house building had not 
contributed to an increase in income.  The Leader of the Council, Councillor Miles 
Parkinson explained that there had been a decrease in income from other areas as well as 
from Government funding and this had offset any increase. 
 
There were no questions from members of the public. 
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

263 General Fund Revenue Budget 2020/21 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report setting out proposals for the 2020/21 
General Fund Revenue Budget which also provided an overview of key issues which had 
arisen from the Medium Term Financial Strategy.   
 
The 2020/21 Revenue Budget required a net expenditure of £11,227,000 under the budget 
proposals detailed in appendices 1 and 2. 
 
Council Tax for Hyndburn residents would rise for Hyndburn Council provided services by 
£5.00 per year for a Band D property.  Altham Parish Council had set a separate precept for 
its activities and there was no increase on its charge. 
 
The following information was attached to the report, which had been submitted to Cabinet 
on 12th February 2020:-   
 

 Appendix 1  -  Initial Outline Budget 2020/21 

 Appendix 2  -  Revenue Budget 2020/21 

 Appendix 3  -  Savings Proposals 2020/21 

 Appendix 4  -  Hyndburn Borough Council Tax Increase 2020/21 by Property Band 

 Appendix 5  -  Overall Change in Council Tax 2020/121 

 Appendix 6  -  Altham Parish Precept 2020/21 by Property Valuation Band 
 
A number of responses were provided by Councillor Plummer to the advanced  
questions submitted, which included: 
 

 How accurate was the estimate of business rates last year and the money drawn 
from reserves? 

 Would the Council consider a borrow to invest project? 

 Are free parking charges only for the forthcoming financial year? 

 How are we comparing best estimation from last year to this year? 

 In relation to Brexit, this budget covers the period February 2021, what will be the 
impact of any deals made between the EU and UK? 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
4 

 
Members were informed that figures would not be known until the end of the year but that it 
was likely to generate above set figures.  The Council would consider a borrow to invest 
project if a sustainable business plan was possible.  There would be free parking charges 
as long as the borough remained as Hyndburn Borough Council.  The Council’s track 
record on estimation was good and usually produced a surplus budget.  The issue relating 
to Brexit was still speculative and the Council would be ready to address any impact.   
 
Questions were also asked from members of the public and individual Members of the  
Council in attendance at the meeting and responses given to the issues raised in respect of 
the following: 
 

 The use of Council’s finances. 

 New Homes Bonuses 

 The cost of recycling 
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted and supported. 
 

264 Capital Programme 2020/21 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report relating to the Council’s capital 
investment priorities for 2020/21 and asked Cabinet on the 12th February 2020 to 
recommend to the Council a capital programme for approval at its meeting on 27th February 
2020, having regard to key linkages between the management of the Council’s capital and 
revenue resources.   
 
A Capital Programme for 2020/21 of £3,107,775 gross was attached to the report in 
Appendix 1.   
 
Reference was made to disabled facility grants, Accrington Market Hall Pavilions, 
Accrington Market Hall Refurbishment, Cemetery Welfare & Deport Facilities, Hyndburn 
Leisure Centre M & E., a new financial system and Broadway as well as a number of 
others.  
 
A number of responses were provided by Councillor Plummer to the advanced  
questions submitted, which included: 
 

 In terms of capital projections could a different word be used rather than ‘Worsen’ as 
this seems a use of negative language. 

 12 months ago, a previous question was raised by the Committee about Universal 
Credit, what is the expectation now it has been pushed back considering Hyndburn 
was a roll in area? 

 
A summary of the responses given to the above questions is outlined as follows: 
 
It was suggested that the word ‘change’ replaced the word ‘worsen’.  The Portfolio Holder 
for Resources pointed out that the word ‘worsen’ was appropriate context to describe the 
increasing level of debt and the need to pay.  With reference to Universal Credit she 
reported that those people currently receiving housing benefit would eventually migrate 
away from this as their circumstances changed.   
 
Members referred to the following questions and responses were provided by the 
Committee as follows:-  
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
5 

 Serious concerns about plans to spend money on improvements to the Market Hall 
Pavilion and Market Hall. 

 Concern about the amount of funding that had accrued in disabled facility grants 
and not spent. 

 
The Leader of the Council reported that investments in the Market would be split and 
related issues would be addressed once stakeholders had been consulted and decisions 
been made.  He informed the Committee that the criteria for disabled facility grants had now 
changed.  
 
Questions from the public were submitted as follows: 
 

 Information requested on a bid for money for the town centre. 

 Suggestion that the Council should buy blighted buildings to make improvements to 
buy and sell on to bring in an income. 

  
The Leader of the Council referred to a number of bids made by the public sector and 
indicated that more would be made should there be a sustainable business case.   
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted and supported. 
 

265 Opposition Group- Budget Proposals 2020-21 
 
No proposal was submitted from the Opposition Group (Conservative Group). 
 
 

266 The Leader of the Council to receive Representations and Questions from Members 
of the Public and Individual Members of the Council on the Budget 
 
Members of the Public had been invited to attend the meeting to hear about budget 
proposals and to ask questions about the budget if they so wished.  Three residents were in 
attendance, two of whom raised questions in relation to the relocation of Clayton Boxing 
Club to Clayton Civic Hall and the cost of improvements required to the property.   
 
The Leader of the Council explained that an assessment was required on Clayton Civic Hall 
followed by a report outlining details of its condition and once this was received they could 
ascertain if the building was appropriate for use.   
 
Laura Lowe, Clayton Boxing Club, reported on the importance of remaining in Clayton, the 
use of the facility by the whole community and of using the £50,000 funding received from 
Sports England in accordance with their rules.   

Resolved (1) That a Task & Finish Group be established to consider a 
new location and provide assistance to the 
sustainability of Clayton Boxing Club: and 

 (2) That the membership of the above Group to consist of 
Members of Clayton Boxing Club, the Chief Executive of 
Hyndburn Leisure and Altham and Clayton Ward 
Councillors to meet as soon as possible. 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
6 

 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 8



 

REPORT TO: Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee; Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Cpmmittee 

DATE: 25th November 2020; 26th November 2020 

REPORT OF: Cllr Paddy Short, Chair of the Resources Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee and Cllr Glen Harrison, Chair 
of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

REPORT AUTHOR: Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 This report requests Cabinet to give consideration to and comment on the draft work 

programmes for Overview and Scrutiny for 2020/21. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That Cabinet notes the work programmes for the Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

contained in the Appendix to this report and provides comments accordingly. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 At the beginning of each municipal year, the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees each agree a work programme for the year. 
 
3.2 The process for agreeing the work programme is set out in Overview and Scrutiny 

procedure rule C6(a) as follows; 
 

“A draft work programme will be submitted for comment to the first appropriate meeting 
of the Cabinet at the beginning of each new Municipal Year and the draft work 
programme for each overview and scrutiny committee will then be submitted to the 
next following meeting of that committee (together with any comments or 
recommendations from the Cabinet) for approval”. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3.



 

3.3 Due to COVID-19 related restrictions and the absence of meetings for a prolonged 
period, it has not been possible to comply with the requirements of the Constitution. 
Therefore the draft work programme was agreed via email exchange between Chairs 
and Vice Chairs of Scrutiny, Cabinet Members and Corporate Management Team. 

 
3.4 A draft work programme for each of the Committees is submitted for comment. This 

will be sent in draft to Cabinet, then to both Scrutiny Committees along with any 
comments from Cabinet. The Scrutiny Committees will then approve a full programme 
which will be submitted to the next meeting of Cabinet. Due to the timings of meetings 
this year it is proposed that the Overview and Scrutiny Officer will circulate any 
comments from Cabinet to Committee members, with a final programme being 
approved at the November Scrutiny meetings. 

 
 
3.5 The work programmes have been developed following consultation including: 
 
• Multiple emails to all Councillors 
• Suggestions sought from all service managers 
• Emails to Cabinet members 
 
3.6 Several items were suggested by Councillors. Due to the reduced Scrutiny programme 

this year relating to the COVID-19 outbreak, all requested items could not be fit into the 
Scrutiny programme. Therefore the Chairs, Vice Chairs and Scrutiny Officer prioritised 
the items included. 

 

Page 10



 

 
Scrutiny Topic Reason for 

Suggestion 
Accepted/R
ejected (If 
rejected 
include 
reason why) 

Notes Suggested 
Committee to 
review (If 
approved) 

COVID grants to 
Businesses 

To review the grants 
distributed to local 
businesses – requested 
by Cllr Paddy Short  

Yes Report request to portfolio holder for 
Resources. 

Resources 

Implications of 
COVID on the 
Councils budget 

To review the 
implications on council 
income and expenditure  
of COVID – requested 
by Councillor Paddy 
Short 

Yes Report request to Portfolio Holder for 
Resources 

Resources 

Hyndburn 
Leisure Financial 
Update 

To review the 
performance of 
Hyndburn Leisure in 
line with Council Capital 
investment – previously 
agreed as a standing 
annual item  

Yes Report request to Portfolio Holder for Leisure 
and CEO Hyndburn Leisure  

Resources  

Budget Statutory duty to review 
the budget for 2021/22 

Yes Report request to Portfolio Holder for 
Resources 

Resources 

AED 
(Defibrillator) 
stock in 
Hyndburn 

The Council previously 
provided grants to 
several external 
organisations to 
purchase and install 
AEDs – requested by 
Councillor Glen 
Harrison 

yes There is an issue with the responsibility for 
checking and maintaining the current AED 
stock in Hyndburn. Invite to NWAS and HBC 
Facilities 

Communities 

Police and Crime 
Update 

Statutory Item Yes Invite to Lancs Police Communities 

Green Review To receive an update 
on any progress on 
recommendations 

Yes Invite to Green Review Lead Resources 

P
age 11



 

submitted by the Green 
Review Scrutiny Panel 

 
3.7 Discussions with the chairs and vice chairs also took place, and items for the work programme were discussed and 

selected in accordance with the Criteria for Selecting Work Programme Items (Appendix 2). 
 
3.8 In addition, Cabinet members were invited to a work programme meeting with the chairs and vice chairs of both 

committees to put forward potential items. 
 
3.9 We have sought to provisionally allocate items to specific meetings.  These may be subject to change during the year, 

particularly where they involve the attendance of external and partner organisations. 
 
3.10 As in previous years, additional items can be added to the work programmes as the year progresses, although scope for 

this may be limited this year. 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable to this report 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 All Councillors and Service Heads were given the opportunity to contribute to the Overview and Scrutiny Work 

Programme 
 

P
age 12



 

 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

None arising from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Not applicable 

Assessment of risk 
 

Not applicable 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not applicable 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 None 

 
 
  

Page 13

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 2019/20 
 

  
Draft Resources Work Programme 2019/20 
 
 

 
Meeting Date 
(All 3pm unless 
otherwise 
stated) 
 

 
Work Topics  

 
26

th
  November 

 
- Confirmation of Work Programme 

- Local Business Grants 
- Council budget – COVID 19 Implications 

 
 
 
 

 
11

th
 February 

 
Budget Reports 
 
 
 

 
17

th
 March  

 
- Hyndburn Leisure Financial Update 

- Green Review Update 

 
 

  
Draft Communities and Wellbeing Work Programme 2019/20 
 

 
Meeting date 
(All 10am unless 
otherwise 
stated) 
 

 
Work Topics 
 

25
th
 November  

- Confirmation of Work Programme 

- AED (Defibrillator) Review 

 
 
 
 

 
17

th
 March 

 
- Police and Crime Report 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 14



 

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
Criteria for selecting work programme items:  
 

1. Is this topic a key priority for the Council? (e.g. as identified in the Sustainable 
Community Strategy and Corporate Strategy)  

 
2. Is this topic important to the public? (e.g. are Members aware of public concern, has 

the issue been raised at Area Councils, has it been raised via public consultation?)  
 

3. Is there evidence of poor performance or value for money concerns which Overview & 
Scrutiny should investigate? (e.g. from performance information, external and internal 
audit reports etc)  

 
4. Does the Council spend a significant proportion of its budget on this issue? 

  
5. Is this issue important to Members? 

  
6. Is anyone else already looking at this issue? (i.e. is it really necessary for Overview & 

Scrutiny to spend time on this?)  
 

7. Is this the right time to look at this issue? (e.g. is it about to change anyway?)  
 

8. Will the time spent on this item be worthwhile? (e.g. can Overview & Scrutiny really 
make a contribution to this issue?)  

 
9. Is there scope to involve the public, voluntary groups or other organisations in this 

topic? 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of Last Meeting held on 18th February 2020
	Minutes

	3. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020 - 2021

